
STORM WATER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
APRIL 7, 2015 

 
The Storm Water Committee meeting was held on April 7, 2015 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State 
Road. The meeting was called to order at 6:10 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Steve Muller, Dan Langshaw; Council: Larry Antoskiewicz, Dan 
Kasaris, Paul Marnecheck, Gary Petrusky; Administration: Mayor Robert Stefanik, Service Director Nick 
Cinquepalmi, City Engineer Mark Schmitzer; Other: Laura Kemp, Lou Krzepina. 
 
Moved by Mr. Muller, seconded by Mr. Langshaw to excuse Mr. Nickell. Yeas: 2. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Langshaw, seconded by Mr. Muller to approve the March 3, 2015 minutes. Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. 
Motion carried.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Storm Water/Infrastructure Maintenance Monthly Report 

Mr. Cinquepalmi reviewed the report, a copy of which is attached to these minutes. He said that they were 
able to finish the Boston Road project they have been working on. He said that they have begun some pipe 
cleaning and catch basin repairs. He said that they are gearing up to begin the stormwater work for the 
season. Mr. Muller asked if there had been any problems with the recent rains and melting snow. Mr. 
Cinquepalmi said no. He said the snow melted without the rains and by the time the rain came, the snow 
was gone. He said they have had the street sweeper out the past few weeks cleaning the streets, and getting 
all the pinch points throughout the city. He said that they are in the process of wrapping this up. There 
were still a lot of leaves in the catch basins that needed to be removed. Mr. Marnecheck asked if the pinch 
points are improving. Mr. Cinquepalmi said yes, they are always improving. He said that we clean those 
points and anytime we find one that can be improved upon we do what needs to be done. Mr. Marnecheck 
asked if there are any pinch points that they don’t have to go to as frequently as in the past because they 
have been repaired. Mr. Cinquepalmi said yes. He said one example is that there was one pinch point that 
used to be called the Money Pit because every time it rained, we knew there would be flooding. He said 
that this was repaired the first summer that this Administration was in office and we haven’t had to revisit 
this for anything except routine checking and maintenance. He said there are other examples where we did 
work in the creeks with gabion baskets and redirecting the flow into the creek. He said overall there are a 
lot of pinch points that we have not had to revisit once they were repaired. Mr. Marnecheck asked if they 
are still finding buried vaults. Mr. Cinquepalmi said that this is happening less and less. The last one they 
found was a few years ago on Stoney Creek that was buried under the tree lawn. He said that we dug it 
out, raised it and there is now a brand new manhole which allows us access. Mr. Langshaw asked what 
some of the key preventative maintenance projects are that the stormwater crews will be doing this year, 
besides all the projects that are already ongoing. Mr. Cinquepalmi said that we still get calls for sink holes 
and we are trying to make sure that all the lines are clear and open. He said that we still have the catch 
basin rebuild program; we have 3,000 catch basins and we try to do 300-400 per year. Mr. Kasaris said 
that we spent a lot of money a few years ago on the Biro Ditch. He asked what the schedule is for 
monitoring this ditch to ensure that it is clear and that the residents are maintaining it properly. Mr. 
Cinquepalmi said we have a regular flood patrol list and the Biro Ditch has about 12 areas that are on this 
list that we monitor. This ditch has been performing very well for the last 4-5 years. He said that when 
they see residents allowing debris to be washed into the ditch, they let them know that this is not allowed.  

 
2. 2015 Projects/Ohio Emergency Management Projects 

Mayor Stefanik said that we are moving through the projects. Boston Road is finished and the Service 
Department did a fantastic job. He said that we will have to go out to bid for the Lynn, Hawley, Delsey 
projects and that is on Council’s agenda tonight. 
Mayor Stefanik said we are getting some quotes on some of the other projects such as Elmwood Oval and 
Kingston Way that will be under $50,000. Mr. Schmitzer said that we are waiting for a few more quotes to 



Storm Water Committee April 7, 2015 Page 2 
 

come in and hopefully we will have all of our costs from different vendors by Friday. Mr. Muller asked 
what the final plan is for Kingston Way. Mr. Schmitzer said that we asked all of the contractors what they 
felt would work. We showed them videos from the residents. The main idea that was common throughout 
these vendors was the placement of large one ton boulders in the creek. This was actually done on the 
Black River in Elyria two years ago. The boulders were placed on a bend where there was high erosion to 
the same degree that we have. He said that last year the banks of the Black River rose 17 feet above the 
high water mark and those boulders were still locked in place when the water receded; they did not move. 
The contractors feel that this will keep the erosion down in this area. Mr. Muller asked if the work for this 
project is only going to be on the outlet side of the pipe or is there anything going to be done on the inlet 
side of the pipe. Mr. Schmitzer said that there is nothing proposed on the inlet side. The problem that we 
are seeing is on the outlet as it goes through from a wide creek to a narrow pipe and shoots out like a 
pressure washer. We ran some ideas about putting some energy dissipaters inside the pipe, which is 
basically building up the concrete inside the pipe to slow it down, let it build up and then spill over, but the 
contractors felt that this was not the best solution. They felt that putting the large one ton boulders in the 
creek for about 100-150 feet from the outlet downstream would be the best solution and then taking some 
of the larger material and move it downstream. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked how many boulders and what was 
the size of these boulders. Mr. Schmitzer said that a one ton boulder is about a 3 foot diameter rock. They 
will be natural limestone rock out of the quarries so it will have an actual stone appearance; it won’t look 
like gray slaps of concrete. Mr. Muller asked if this has been discussed with the residents in the area. Mr. 
Schmitzer said no, we are still working on getting the pricing and seeing what other ideas people come up 
with. Mayor Stefanik said that there are a couple of big time contractors that are looking at this to give us 
what they feel will be the best solution here. When we decide on a solution we will share it with the 
residents and we will let them know before we begin the work. Mr. Muller asked for a description of what 
this boulder solution would look like. Mr. Schmitzer said that he can ask some of the contractors who have 
pictures of this application in place and share them with Council. Mayor Stefanik reported that the sewer 
district finished one project on Edgewood Drive. They cleaned out a very long retention area and now they 
are working on Razick’s Lake by digging out the retention basin from the debris that came down in the 
May 12th storm. They are also finalizing the two Bunker Road projects. Their engineering staff went out 
there and they will be coming up with a plan that they will then execute. He said that we will have to ask 
for an extension on the grant for several of the projects and that will be coming up in the next few weeks. 
Mr. Schmitzer said that he will be speaking with the Grants Administrator for the Ohio Emergency 
Management next Monday and will request an extension, particularly for the Bunker Road projects. These 
projects are going to take some time and they are looking at an August time frame to get these completed. 
Mr. Schmitzer said that we had a total of 11 projects that we are working on with the Sewer District and 
in-house. 5 of these are actually done. The 2 on Bunker Road are being designed right now. The Lynn, 
Hawley, Delsy project will be bid out. We are getting price quotes on the Kingston Way and Elmwood 
Oval projects by the end of the week and Razick’s Lake is the last one being done and it is actually in 
progress. We can show them good evidence that we are making an effort to get these projects done, it is 
just taking a little more time. He did not feel that we should have any problems getting a time extension. 

 
3. Turnpike Mitigation 

Mayor Stefanik said that letters went out to some of the homeowners in the area. They are currently doing 
soil and noise testing. He said that a few reporters have contacted the Turnpike and said they are getting 
mixed answers. He said that they are planning to do sound abatement, but one reporter was told that the 
residents were going to be surveyed and that a 50% positive response was required for them to do the 
noise improvements. Mayor Stefanik said that he has not heard this personally. He said that they are 
moving forward. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that he has received a few phone calls asking why they are doing 
another noise study when one was already done. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that since ODOT is putting money 
into this, there are certain things that they have to do to fulfill their criteria. He said that there is nothing 
major that will stop this project from going forward. Additional testing is still being performed. Mr. Muller 
asked if there is an anticipated start date for this project. Mayor Stefanik said that we have not yet received 
a timetable for this project. 

 



Storm Water Committee April 7, 2015 Page 3 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
No new business. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
Mr. Antoskiewicz asked for an update on the Cedar Estates project. Mr. Schmitzer said that all the main line 
sewer is done. The contractor did the road repairs where we had to cross the road. They are working on aprons 
and sidewalks and in the next two weeks anticipate getting the trees out there and bringing in their landscapers 
to finish up. He said that they had one small change request. There were two trees that were to be replaced 
with a certain type based on our code and they asked to switch it out for a different type. He said that he will 
speak with the Mayor and Mr. Cinquepalmi to see if this is ok. It is still a crab apple, just a different 
type/color. Mr. Schmitzer said regarding the basin project, he got word from the consultant that the 
environmental part has been completed by the Army Corps of Engineers. He said there was a channel that we 
were concerned about with a wetland area that we were impacting and the Army Corps said that they are not 
considering this an impact, so that is good news and helps out our situation. He said that there are two plans 
that are going to be submitted; the preferred plan and an alternative plan. One will have more impacts than the 
other. The consultant has the paper work ready to go in to the EPA. After consultation with the EPA we took 
one of the options out because they said that they would not even entertain that idea, so that helped us out as 
well. We should be submitting in the next week and should have an answer in 30 days from that point. Once 
we receive the permit and approval, plans will be finalized, we will go out to bid and start construction. He 
said that it looks like this summer is still the timeline for this project. Mr. Schmitzer said the other part is the 
York-Tilby stretch that we have spoken about with Soil and Water. They will be getting a plan to him next 
week to review and we will make a field visit to verify that this is what we want to do. Once this is finalized, 
we will meet with the residents to let them know what is going on, obtain any necessary permits and begin 
construction sometime in June. He said that this project is 100% funded by a grant from Cuyahoga County 
Soil and Water. Mr. Kasaris asked who will be doing the work. Mr. Schmitzer said that is yet to be 
determined. Mr. Kasaris asked if this is because of cost or how labor intensive it will be. Mr. Schmitzer said 
both. He does not think the cost will be above the public bidding threshold of $50,000, but we have not 
finalized a plan yet to see where the estimate is. Mr. Kasaris asked for the timeframe for completion. Mr. 
Schmitzer said it will depend on the plan, but felt that a couple weeks would be enough time. Mr. Muller asked 
about the plan that the EPA would not entertain and what were the items that they wouldn’t go for. Mr. 
Schmitzer said that the EPA and Army Corps look at every natural feature out there - wetlands, streams, etc. 
One of the plans that we were calling for was cutting off the stream just before the stream that comes from 
York Road enters into the ditches behind Applewood. We were going to cut it off and step it down into the 
basin. The basin would fill up and there would be a control structure that would slowly release the water out. 
They did not like this; they don’t want the stream to be impacted. It was only going to impact 75-100 feet, but 
they didn’t want any impact. So rather than argue the point with them, we decided to not move forward with 
that plan and use other alternates that will have the same effect. Mr. Muller asked what is the preferred 
alternate plan. Mr. Schmitzer said it is an equalization pipe underneath the stream. They will allow us to 
temporarily cut the stream off in order to put a pipe underneath the stream so that you can have a basin on both 
sides of the stream to equalize the volume and restore the stream. They won’t let us take it away permanently.  
 
Mayor Stefanik said that Royal Redeemer is holding their Servant Saturday on May 2, 2015 and asked Council 
to submit projects from their wards. Those Councilman who are volunteering will get a group of 4-5 
volunteers for 3-4 hours to help them in their ward. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Langshaw, seconded by Mr. Muller to adjourn the April 7, 2015 meeting. Yeas: 2. Nays: 0. 
Motion carried.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m.  






	040715 Storm Water Minutes
	040715 Storm Water Minutes - EXHIBIT

